**PERSONAL AUDIO ENHANCERS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE COUNCIL
SECRETARY**

AGENDA FOR REGULAR ELKHART CITY COUNCIL MEETING
LOCATION: CITY HALL, 2"° FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS
October 21, 2024
6:00 P.M.

Call to Order, Pledge, Moment of Silent Meditation, Roll Call

Minutes for Approval
Minutes of September 21, 2024 — Finance Of-The-Whole Committee (Budget Hearings)
Minutes of October 7, 2024 — Council Meeting

Presentations and Introductions

Unfinished Business

a) Reports of Council Committees

b) Ordinances on Second-Third Reading
Proposed Ordinance 24-0-40, an ordinance adopting a schedule of salaries
and other compensation for the Fire Department of the City of Elkhart,
Indiana, for the calendar year 2025

¢) Ordinances and Resolutions Referred to Committees

d) Tabled Ordinances and Resolutions
Proposed Ordinance 24-0-10, an ordinance of the Common Council of the
City of Elkhart, Indiana, authorizing the issuance of the City of Elkhart,
Indiana, taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds and approving and
authorizing other actions in respect thereto

New Business

a. Ordinances on First Reading
Proposed Ordinance 24-0-41, an ordinance amending the Zoning Map
created pursuant to Ordinance No. 4370, the “Zoning Ordinance of the City of
Elkhart, Indiana” as amended, to rezone 203 N. Nappanee Street, Elkhart, IN
46514, from R-2, One Family Dwelling to District O, Office District
Proposed Ordinance 24-0-42, an ordinance amending the Zoning Map
created pursuant to Ordinance No. 4370, the “Zoning Ordinance of the City of
Elkhart, Indiana” as amended, to rezone 2520 and 2526 Bypass Road, Elkhart,
IN 46514, from M-1, Limited Manufacturing District to R-4, Multiple Family
Dwelling
Proposed Ordinance 24-0-43, an ordinance enacting and adopting the
Twenty-Third and Twenty-Fourth Supplements to the Code of Ordinances for
the City of Elkhart, Indiana




b. Resolutions
Proposed Resolution No. 24-R-49, a resolution of the Common Council of
the City of Elkhart, Indiana, authorizing the transfer of Ninety Thousand
Dollars ($90,000.00) from the Lerner Theatre Personnel Category to the Other
Services & Charges Category
Proposed Resolution No. 24-R-50, a resolution of the Common Council of
the City of Elkhart, Indiana, declaring a certain area to be an economic
revitalization area for the purpose of granting tax phase in benefits to
Consolidated Metals, Inc.\Westwood Manor, Inc.

¢. Vacation Hearings
There are no vacation hearings

d. Other New Business

e. Reports of Mayor, Board of Works, Board of Safety or City Departments

f. Neighborhood Association Report

g. Privilege of the Floor
Please limit your comments to 3 minutes to allow others time to comment

h. Scheduling of Committee Meetings

Acceptance of Communications

Minutes of September 10, 2024 — Aurora Capital Development Corporation
Minutes of September 24, 2024 — Board of Public Safety

Minutes of October 1, 2024 — Board of Public Works

Minutes of September 10, 2024 — Elkhart Redevelopment Commission
Minutes of September 11, 2024 — Lerner Theatre Board

Adjournment



DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE 2025 CIVIL CITY BUDGET HEARINGS OF THE COMMON
COUNCIL ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2024

Present: Finance Committee Chairman Arvis Dawson
Council Members Alex Holtz, Brent Curry, LaTonya King, Aaron Mishler,
Dwight Fish, Tonda Hines, Chad Crabtree and David Henke

Absent: None.

The 2025 Civil City Budget Hearings of the Common Council of the City of Elkhart were
held on September 21, 2024 at the Lerner Theatre, 410 S. Main Street, Elkhart, Indiana. This
meeting was made available to the public via WebEx. Finance Committee Chairman Arvis
Dawson and Council Members Alex Holtz, Brent Curry, LaTonya King, Aaron Mishler, Dwight
Fish, Tonda Hines, Chad Crabtree and David Henke were physically present at the Lerner
Theatre. No Council Members participated remotely.

Councilman Dawson, Finance Committee Chairman, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

The clerk called the roll.

Mayvor’s Introduction of the 2025 Budget:

The mayor’s introduction starts at 13 minutes and 02 seconds of the audio recording.

Mayor Roberson started off by thanking Jamie and his department as well as Bradly Tracy, his
Chief of Staff for putting together what he feels is a very responsible budget. He went on to
thank all of the department heads as well as the judge and Deb for their cooperation and help
with respect to the budget. He stated with that said, they are getting ready to discuss $128,341
Million Dollars in revenue for the City of Elkhart, with appropriations of $125,754,599 and out
of that Capital Outlay transfers of $8,210,994. With that said, they feel this is a very responsible
budget and he is asking for their review and approval and he is hoping for a positive conclusion
to this process. He stated that this is set for adoption at the October 21% Council meeting. He
asked Jamie if that was correct? Jamie Arce, City Controller stated that is the current timeline
for adoption, but that is subject to change if the Council so wishes as long as it is adopted by
November 1¥. Mayor Roberson said this budget is a little different than the others. He said
they wanted to make sure that it connected to their overarching strategy inside of the city, which
is Aspire. They started Aspire this year and it is a collection of the plans and strategies that they
believe are going to transform the City of Elkhart for years to come. The categories that you will
be looking at, which are posted behind you, is the budget separated in the four pillars of Aspire.
They are working within the departments to ensure that they are putting metrics together that
speak to what that means as it relates to the overall strategy. Public safety, infrastructure,
neighborhoods and quality of place and we put all of the departments within those four

1



DRAFT

categories, he said with what he will call the corporate departments which are the Controller,
Human Resources, hereafter HR, Information Technology, hereafter IT, those that cover the
foundation of the city services.

Copies of the posters are attached to these minutes.

The introduction ends at 16 minutes and 45 seconds of the audio recording.

Foundational Services

Mavor’s Budget (Page 14 of the Budget Book):

Discussion of the Mayor’s budget starts at 16 minutes and 50 seconds of the audio recording.

Jamie Arce said, the overview of the Mayor’s budget is there are no suggested changes other
than those that would be impacting the payroll, personnel services lines regarding any proposed
raises and or changes in health insurance, and those are all directed towards any changes because
of raises and the current vacancy in the Mayor’s office. They are budgeting at a higher rate for
health insurance, which could change depending on the candidate that is selected.

Councilman Henke questioned the change in the overall budget expense. Jamie Arce
responded there were some changes within the office that resulted in a decrease in the pay due to
a shift in responsibilities. Councilman Henke asked a question regarding professional services
and the differences on that line. Jamie Arce responded the difference that is seen there is due to
the timing, it is currently on an annual basis so it does not reflect late third quarter and fourth
quarter. Councilman Henke asked about the membership dues and other services and charges
and the changes reflected there. Jamie Arce responded there is no actual changes in the amount
requested, the other services and charges account line allows for some flexibility within the
budget to allow for the transfer of funds between accounts and that is the best way to trend all of
those expenses. Councilman Henke asked are there any additional vacation days allotted in this
department? Jaime Arce replied, none that he is aware of, those benefits would not run through
his department, any requests or modifications that the Council would make would run through
the Human Resources Department, not the Mayor’s office, and those would not be reflected in
any budget.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Henke, second by Councilwoman Hines.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for the Mayor’s Office was tentatively
approved.

Discussion on the Mayor’s budget ends at 25 minutes and 18 seconds of the audio recording.



DRAFT

City Counsel (Page 26 of the Budget Book):

Discussion of the City Council Budget begins at 25 minutes and 24 seconds of the audio
recording.

Councilman Curry stated the council budget had been reduced. Jamie Arce replied, it has, last
year was an election year and they chose to budget all nine of the positions at the highest health
insurance rate as a backstop. That is the primary change, they are shifting health insurance to
reflect what is currently being utilized by the council at this time. The proposed increase would
include the proposed 3% for elected officials and you share part of the Clerk’s budget for the
council clerk.

Councilman Henke expressed concern that trending the budget over three (3) years would
reflect a large increase and asked if the president and the controller believed that amount is
necessary. Chairman Dawson replied, he thought it was necessary based on different events that
come about and the fact that they had used professional services more than they had in the past.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilwoman Hines, second by Councilman Fish.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for the Common Council was tentatively
approved.

Discussion on the City Council budget ends at 27 minutes and 54 seconds of the audio recording.

City Clerk
Department Budget (General Fund) (Page 20 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on the City Clerk Budget begins at 28 minutes and 45 seconds of the audio recording.

Debra Barrett, City Clerk provided a brief opening statement of things they had accomplished
this year. She said, one of the items that was added this year with the help of the Information
Technology Department, hereafter IT, was a terminal for the public to check their voter
registration, register to vote, request an absentee ballot and verify that their current address
matches voter registration. She said they can also look up their cases in any Odyssey court. This
was done with the help of IT Director Gerald at no extra cost. She said they have also added a
table on the City Clerk’s page that has the agenda and viewing instructions, the video from the
meeting and minutes once they are approved. She said people can go to her page and it will take
them all the way back to when the table was started. She went on to say that in April they signed
up with the Indiana Tax Refund Intercept Program, which intercepts state tax refunds for traffic
tickets. To date they have collected $42,289.36 in outstanding tickets. The Capital Recovery
System, which was started in 2012 is currently at $3,009,374.41. There are no fees with this and
all the money is paid into the city. The department has moved some of the general fund budget
for the clerk to be paid by the user fees from the Records Perpetuation Fund. The new permanent
part time position will also be paid with those dollars from the Records Perpetuation Fund. This
is why the overall budget has gone down.



DRAFT

Councilman Mishler asked about the contract services line and why it was not in the previous
budget and it is not in the future budget. Jamie Arce replied, earlier this year the council
approved to transfer funds to assist with the part time temporary help we were receiving.

Councilman Fish regarding the $42,000 dollar figure you mentioned, is that new money? Deb
Barrett replied, since April of 2023, they have collected that amount. The state holds the tax
refund and they give the person an opportunity to pay that balance due, it is only for traffic
tickets. If the person does not pay it the person is charged a surcharge by the state and all the
money collected to pay off those tickets. Councilman Fish asked is that a state statute
connection? Debra Barrett replied, yes, it is through Odyssey courts, and through the Odyssey
program, they are able to collect that money at no fee. Councilman Fish asked are they up to
date with recordings, both physical and video tape so the public can access those things for
review? Debra Barrett replied, yes, they try to upload the agenda before the meeting to the City
Clerk’s page and they try to upload the video within 48 hours of the conclusion of the Council
meeting, but they do not upload the minutes until the council has approved them, because they
consider those draft minutes.

Councilman Henke questioned an expenditure in a line that had no budget, was that contract
services? Jamie Arce replied yes, that is the difference between when it was approved and the
council had taken action to authorize the transfer for hiring a temporary employee. Councilman
Henke said he would like that to be noted on Schedule A for future reference. He also asked how
many full time people are in the City Clerk’s department. Debra Barrett replied she thinks she
has 8 full time people. Councilman Henke said he would like to know about the increase to
align current salary levels and proposed performance reviews, He also wanted to know if people
are getting written performance reviews. Debra Barrett replied, yes, all of the staff
performance reviews were completed this week, she stated she has two administrator’s reviews
that are currently not completed. Councilman Henke questioned the amount of the raises and if
they are within the 4% for performance and merit raises. Jamie Arce replied there was a
maximum of a 4% pool that was included in each department’s budget. The full time line is
actually less than 4 %, there is some potential changes for the sharing of the clerk to the
council’s budget and any potential changes to the resident incentive. Councilman Henke said
with the decrease in the amount that is asked for in the 2025 budget, what are the costs in the
surplus line. Jamie Arce replied, as Deb indicated there is a transfer into the Records
Perpetuation Fund, the philosophy of spending the most restricted funds first and in leveraging
the user fees that are created through the Records Perpetuation Fund. He said he believes that
item is on the next agenda for this budget meeting.

Councilman Mishler in talking about the merit ranges, is there a minimum? Jamie Arce replied
the matrix that we established is complex, but they have in certain places taken the approach that
if they are an extremely poor performer, their raise, if any, is going to be significantly less than
someone who is at the midpoint of the desired hiring range as compared to someone who is
meeting expectations. It is a multi-tiered matrix that he can share with the council. Councilman
Mishler asked are there any cost of living on top of the merit or is merit the only thing? Jamie
Arce replied, it is embedded, in theory it is a two and two, but it is really looking at anticipated
cost of living for social security it was 2.5% and last he had checked it is pretty consistent with

4



DRAFT

where we were last year, they may change internally what any cost of living is guaranteed versus
the level that is performance based. Councilman Mishler said so maybe a cost of living as well
as a residency bonus for those who live in the city is what our employees will be seeing, is that
correct. Jamie Arce replied, yes.

Debra Barrett said a new law went into effect that requires an automatic expungement for
people who are arrested and never charged and for people whose cases are dismissed either
through pre-trial or other means or for people found not guilty. She supports this, but the law is
retroactive to July 1, 2022. Right now, her chief deputy and her staff are working diligently to
identify those cases because people do not have to request this, they are just supposed to do this.
While this is cumbersome, there are nine different agencies that have to get this expungement so
that it does not turn up and people have to answer questions that they should not have to answer.
It is just supposed to be removed. This is a big project that they are currently working on, and the
big thing currently is the backlog which is retroactive to July 1, 2022.

Councilman Curry asked do we know how many people are affected. Debra Barrett replied,
they are still working on that, they can only run reports one month at a time. Because pre-trial
diversion qualifies if you complete it and it is dismissed they have to get rid of and seal all of that
information. This has to be done by nine different agencies. When she gets a number she will be
happy to pass it on.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Mishler, second by Councilwoman Hines.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for the City Clerk was tentatively approved.

Discussion on the City Clerk Department budget ends at 48 minutes and 57 seconds of the audio
recording.

City Clerk
Records Perpetuation Fund (Page 78 of the Budget Book):

Discussion of the City Clerk Records Perpetuation Fund begins at 49 minutes and 10 seconds of
the audio recording.

Jamie Arce said, here you will see the shifts that Debra Barrett had reflected on her budget and
were discussed earlier regarding the part time employees, some of the additional costs associated
with office supplies, etc., in an effort to better utilize the fees they are collecting and to alleviate
the burden from the General Fund.

Councilman Fish said this is quite a spike on paper, they are not going to swing back, to change
the rules again next year to go back to the perpetuation fund, is that correct? Debra Barrett said,
she will meet each year with Jamie and she will not move anything back unless she has to. Her
hope is that these items stay on the Records Perpetuation User Fee. Councilman Fish said any
of the money we have collected the $42,000 and other fees and services, will that roll into here?
Debra Barrett said some of it does, each ticket has what is called a document storage fee, and it
is between $3.00 and $5.00 that is for my Records Perpetuation Fund. They also get a stipend
from Prosecutor’s office for pre-trial diversion that is deposited into the records perpetuation.

5



DRAFT

That is how they are funded, any case that has been filed, there is a document storage fee that
comes back to us for records perpetuation.

Councilman Henke said he has done the math and it is a real tight budget.
Motion for tentative approval made by Councilwoman Hines, second by Councilman Fish.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Records Perpetuation was tentatively
approved.

Discussion on the City Clerk Records Perpetuation Fund budget ends at 52 minutes and 16
seconds of the audio recording.

City Court (Page 22 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on the City Court budget begins at 52 minutes and 28 minutes of the audio recording.

Jamie Arce said there was an error on his part on the judge’s salary. The salary that is going to
be presented is not what is going to be reflected as part of the salary ordinance. The spreadsheet
that he used had been based off of the presumption of a 4% raise and he failed to make that
adjustment. As much as the judge would be in favor of that he was worth that extra, but the
amount the judge will get paid will not be in excess of what is going to be approved.

Judge Charles Grodnik said the judgement that they talked about regarding the expungement is
long overdue. In the line in the probation section he wanted to comment because he has been
blessed with a wonderful legal aid lawyer, but they are going to have to bite the bullet because he
believes the defense should have the same salary as much as possible as the prosecution. The
defense should have as strong a defense as the prosecution has and that is the case and the
adjustment in the legal aid. A fee certainly reflects that and it is seen that when probation comes
up and since that is more of a court matter he wanted to bring that to the council’s attention He
believes the city is blessed with a wonderful controller and that he is an asset to the city. Lastly,
he does not know why but by next year they will be the only court left in Elkhart, the largest city
in the county.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Fish, second by Councilwoman Hines.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for City Court was tentatively approved.

Discussion on the City Court budget ends at 59 minutes and 42 seconds of the audio recording.
Probation

Department Budget (General fund) (Page 24 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on the Probation Department Budget (General Fund) begins at 59 minutes 45 seconds
of the audio recording.

Brian Shaw, Chief Probation Officer, City Court said he would like to state that their
probation department continues to do very well with the services we provide to our community.
He has a strong and dedicated team at probation. He began tracking success rates of all persons

6



DRAFT

going through probation starting in January 2022. He provided the council with a chart of their
success rates for 2023 (Those charts are attached to end of these minutes). This year, like last
year they have a much higher success rate than failure rate and he is proud to say that they are
doing their job, working hard at making the city safer every day and attempting to rehabilitate
individuals as they continue to live and work in the community as well as protect the general
public. The handout also shows you the demographic breakdown of age, race and gender along
with the percentage rates. Last year the council asked him to keep track of the crimes for
convictions of those placed on probation and he has included a copy of year to date 2024 and a
copy of 2023. He said when it comes to their 2025 budget, they have asked for an increase for
interpretation services. They have two (2) Spanish to English interpreters and they assist the
court defendants probation and prosecutors and legal aid with Spanish and the Spanish speaking
community. One of the interpreters has been with them three (3) years and has had one pay
increase in that time. The other interpreter has been with them two (2) years and has not had one
pay increase. They are both very loyal and do exceptional interpretation for our court and
probation department and they feel it is time for them to be properly compensated for what they
do for the city. Jaime Arce said he would like to add to the interpretation side, they have
previously been paid out of the professional services line and it was at the suggestion of legal
counsel that based on some of the training they were provided to them that they were best to be
categorized and treated as part time employees and that is why they are seeing that transition
from professional services into part time. As part of that recommendation is an increase in their
per diem to accommodate for their language skill. When looking at the probation department’s
personal services the payroll is split between the Probation User Fees Fund, hereafter PUFF at a
60/40 rate. 60 is paid out of the general fund and 40 is paid out of the PUFF. The legal aid
assistance component is being provided to city court and the increase that they are requesting is
still substantially less than what the public defender for the county would be receiving who is
paid on equity with the prosecutor. Brian Shaw also said one more thing on the legal aid, the
position comes with no benefits and the county averages their wages for public defenders is
between $80,000 and $90,000 per year. Jamie Arce said, the chief public defender for the
county was paid $165,000 a year according to Gateways 100 R report. It is his understanding that
there was a statutory requirement that had the chief public defender also be paid on equity, the
same as the county prosecutor so there was no discrepancy in the talent that was being sought
after.

Councilman Mishler asked is there another service available for those who might speak another
language other than Spanish. Brian Shaw responded those funds come out of the interpretation.
They do have professional services enough in there for those unusual cases where they have
somebody with a language other than Spanish. They use a service called Language Line and
there is a phone in the courtroom that can be used to accommodate those types of special
circumstances.

Councilwoman Hines is there services available for things that are written and can the
interpreters do that also? Brian Shaw replied the interpreters do help out with written translation
when they have forms they need to fill out as well as helping the office with documents that need
to be created.



DRAFT

Councilman Holtz asked when the last time that we increased legal assistance. The $32,000
seems like a catch up. Jamie Arce replied, last year there was a request for a $3,000 increase.

Councilman Henke said, looking at the police department numbers versus the probation
department numbers it seems to be a discrepancy, he expected a greater number of people in the
probation area. Brian Shaw replied, if it is an arrest made by the Elkhart Police Department
within the city limits it most likely will come to our court, but the discrepancy in the numbers
you are talking about is that a lot of those cases will go to the prosecutor’s deferral program and
never come to probation. Councilman Henke asked if there is any way to track those that come
in that are homeless? Brian Shaw replied that is something he cannot give you an answer on.
They do have plenty of people on probation that say they are homeless and many times they will
give an address of a family member or a place they used to live where they can receive mail.
Councilman Henke said it appears that repair and maintenance of building may be an account
that is not utilized, is it just a place holder. Jamie Arce responded this is in place because they
have their own building. He said recently their air conditioner was vandalized and the copper
wire was stolen and they needed to leverage those funds to be able to fix that situation. If those
funds were removed in that instance it would have required an appropriation and caused a
potential unnecessary delay in getting them moving forward with any repairs.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Crabtree, second by Councilwoman Hines.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Probation was tentatively approved.

Discussion on the Probation Department (General Fund) budget ends at 1 hour, 16 minutes and
25 seconds of the audio recording.

Probation User Fees (Page 74 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on Probation User Fees begins at 1 hour, 16 minutes and 30 seconds of the audio
recording.

Jamie Arce said this represents the remaining 40% of their payroll budget. There are no other
items included in this.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilwoman Hines, second by Councilman Crabtree.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Probation User Fee was tentatively
approved.

Discussion on the Probation User Fees budget ends at 1 hour, 16 minutes and 25 seconds of the
audio recording.

Corporate Counsel (Page 32 of the Budget Book):

Discussion begins at 1 hour, 17 minutes and 4 seconds of the audio recording.

John Espar, Corporate Counsel said, he has a fully staffed office and because of that they have
been able to see an acceleration of their ability to liquidate what was a backlog of cases. After
inquiring with the Office of the State Court Administrator we discovered there were 6,600 cases

8



DRAFT

and they were able to liquidate and eliminate that backlog. This allowed them to be able to set
benchmarks for the future. They plan for next year to improve and broaden the services of the
department. Those include in service training for several departments.

Councilman Mishler asked about the publication of legal notices which looks like it has jumped
significantly. Is it required to use the Elkhart Truth for public notices or are there other avenues
that can be used per state law? John Espar said we are still required to use a print publication in
general circulation of the city. The Indiana legislature has authorized the use of one’s website to
simultaneously publish and there are some areas where that can be used exclusively, but not in
areas of litigation. They have been able to consolidate some of our notices for collection in order
to save some cost. Councilman Mishler replied that is great to be able to save taxpayers funds.
Please speak about the increase in Laredo and Westlaw, is that caused by the raising prices of the
software? Jamie Arce replied, he thinks he is talking about two (2) different issues. They have
made the decision across departments to create a standalone account line to be able to identify
that. A portion of that is a transfer in out of the subscription line and along with the increased
costs associated with the current subscriptions. The current subscription net is around $3,200 for
additional seats.

Councilman Fish asked is everything going digital? Is most of this online service for legal
research? John Espar replied, the department of law’s major software is a program that is
locally run, it is a web based program not cloud based. Councilman Fish said it is almost like
the dollars are being shifted to a different line. John Espar said he thinks that is accurate, they
are being divided between categories and subcategories.

Councilman Henke said on the professional service line it says expended for six (6) months
$80,000 on a budget of $40,000. Jamie Arce replied that would be a continuation of the
previously encumbered funds for the defense of any cases that may be ongoing and it provides
some additional insight as to needing to provide some additional information as part of the
difference between the adopted budget and the current budget. The Schedule A was established
before he was employed and the way it identifies the changes between one year’s budget and the
next year’s budget and not the expenditure components. Councilman Henke believes that
should be reflected on Schedule A and it would benefit the process. He also asked about the
increase for current rates of pay and proposed raises and the 4%. Jaime Arce replied it is 4% for
the current headcount and the budget reflects the midpoint. He also stated that he has made note
of looking into something that would be a more reflective way to discern trends or concerns that
would address this issue. Currently, looking at the financial statements would be the way to see
this information.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Henke, second by Councilman Mishler.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Corporation Counsel was tentatively
approved.

Discussion on the Corporation Counsel (General Fund) budget ends at 1 hour, 36 minutes and 14
seconds of the audio recording.



DRAFT

Controller

Department Budget (General Fund) (Page 28 of the Budget Book):

Discussion of the Controller Department Budget (General Fund) begins at 1 hour, 36 minutes
and 38 seconds of the audio recording.

Jamie Arce, City Controller provided an opening statement. He said that he has seven (7) full-
time employees who play a crucial role in managing the financial resources of the city and unlike
other departments, they provide underlying support to all the pillars of Aspire. He stated that
their primary responsibilities are financial planning (budgeting), accounting and reporting,
revenue collection, expenditure control, debt management, and assisting with the issuance of
bonds. He said they are responsible for prescribing the payroll and they partner with the
Department of Human Resources, hereafter HR, in that management. He said in 2024 the
highlights are they have moved forward with their electronic funds payments. He was given
approval by the Council to do this in late *22 and to this point, they are at 60% of payments
being made using electronic funds transfers. He said that has provided them with the ability to
decrease their postage and it creates a more timely payment to the vendor. He said another
project that they undertook this year was transitioning to a Concur based travel platform with
Travel Leaders. He said this platform helps keep things controlled within the travel policies. He
said those were two (2) of the core highlights for 2024. He said in 2025, they are looking to
implement the automation of their accounts payable process that will be a paperless transaction
and support their current ERP accounting system. This will allow for an easier flow of
information and the workflow will be no different except they will no longer need to have paper
claims and signatures be delivered to the office and it will help to alleviate their document
retention in paper form. He said that they hope to pilot the program late this year and then move
into a fuller implementation in 2025.

Councilman Henke asked if this would be sending out payments automatically. Jamie Arce
responded, the process will not change except for the need for actual paper. The person who is
responsible for creating the claim and entering that information into the accounting system

would be responsible. The difference is it will now be scanned into the system and the software
will try to auto populate the information provided, for example, the invoice number, the vendor
and other pertinent information attached to the claim. It will still be at the control and approval of
the initial individual providing the claim. This will also allow them to pull the information easily
for the board of accounts to audit. Councilman Henke asked at the end of the seven years what
happens. Jamie Arce responded we can destroy it digitally or we can chose to keep it,

Councilman Mishler said it seems like it will be significantly cheaper and allow for future
councils or the general public to look at it years from now. Jamie Arce responded, the history
will still be there, it will just be electronic.

Councilman Henke said he appreciates the new way of thinking in terms of efficiency and cost
reduction. He addressed some numbers that were transferred and not on Schedule A. Jamie Arce
responded those are additional items that were transfers to better identify some of the supplies
and like other transfers they do not appear on Schedule A. Councilman Henke said he
appreciates working with the controller.

10



DRAFT

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Henke, second by Councilwoman Hines.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Controller Department (General Fund)
was tentatively approved.

Discussion on the Controller Department (General Fund) budget ends at 1 hour, 51 minutes and
12 seconds of the audio recording.

Non-Departmental (General Fund Transfers) (Page 12 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on the Controller Non-Departmental (General Fund Transfers) begins at 1 hour, 51
minutes and 31 seconds of the audio recording.

Jamie Arce said, transfers are considered other financing uses. This is across some of the
departments where we are moving money from one fund to another. There will be a correlating
revenue component that would be embedded within the department that would be receiving it.
Six million is a transfer into capital outlay, which has no correlating appropriation request. This
is for future saving for future investment and being able to have the cash when they need it for
new projects. The remaining $140,000 is for the transfer into the animal control fund to offset the
costs associated with the Humane Society and the interlocal agreement that they have with them.

Councilman Henke said this did not appear on Schedule A and he would like to know how this
fund gains revenue year over year. Jamie Arce said the transfer comes out of the general fund
and the components associated with it are presented in one of the summary documents in the
beginning of the Budget Book showing what they are projecting the cash balances to be at the
beginning and at the end of the year. This is an automatic transfer to the outlay fund for future
purposes. Councilman Henke asked does it ever accumulate. Jamie Arce said yes.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Fish, second by Councilman Crabtree.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Controller Department Non Departmental
(General Fund Transfers) was tentatively approved.

Discussion on the Controller Department Non Departmental (General Fund Transfers) budget
ends at 1 hour, 55 minutes and 41 seconds of the audio recording.

Human Resources (Page 30 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on Human Resources Budget begins at 1 hour, 56 minutes and 00 seconds of the
audio recording

Wayne Belock, Director of Human Resources said, in 2024 they implemented mental
management for training and negotiation of the contract with firefighters, cost reductions in
workers compensation and risk management, streamlined the on boarding process payroll
timekeeping functions. In 2025 they are looking to improve employee education and training
opportunities, look into employee benefits and insurance programs and review and update job
descriptions. They are not requesting any new positions and in non-personnel budget they are
requesting the same funding as last year.

11



DRAFT

Councilman Mishler asked if he could answer his earlier question about merit based increases.
Wayne Belock responded, the last couple of years there has been a Cost of Living Adjustment
hereafter, (COLA) component and a merit component with that. Therefore assuming the 4% and
assuming inflation at 2% that the COLA would probably be around 2 % and the merit component
would come out of that additional 2%. The ceiling would be 4% with both of them combined.
Councilman Mishler asked if there is a work from home policy due to the lack of space in some
departments. Wayne Belock replied the city does not have a formal work from home policy.
There is some flexibility in some departments as far as for doctor appointments, etc. But as far as
to satisfy space issues, that has not been addressed. Councilman Mishler said it might be
something in the future for some of the roles where you just need a laptop and a phone.
Chairman Dawson said he has seen the cramped spaces in the Annex and he thinks they need to
be thinking about that in the future.

Councilman Henke had some questions about the projected actual budget. Jamie Arce
responded some of those things are timing issues and also flexibility in certain areas for training
and contractual services. So if the need came up for mediation they would not have to delay the
process due to moving funds. They are not providing unnecessary capacity which we did not
have the intention of needing it to be used. They tried to implement that in all departments. They
take every request for intra category transfers seriously. They analyze each one to understand
why it is happening and how it aligns with the core components of Aspire. Councilman Henke
said he is looking for a trend. On the full time line he questioned the amount and how it was
under budgeted. Jamie Arce said there was a vacancy in the department so that made the
baseline for the starting point for the budget lower as they had not identified a person to fill the
position and the person who left was paid at a higher rate than a new employee would be paid
initially.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilwoman Hines, second by Councilman Mishler.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Human Resources was tentatively
approved.

Discussion on the Human Resources budget ends at 2 hours, 07 minutes and 44 seconds of the
audio recording.

Information Technology

General Fund (Page 38 of the Budget Book):

Council discussion on the Information Technology General Fund begins at 2 hours, 08 minutes
and 04 seconds of the audio recording.

Jamie Arce said, he wanted to highlight that this is one of those funds where they split the fund
between the cumulative capital development fund, which is more restrictive and the general fund
and given some of the changes in the IT budget they made some transfers or changes in how
those expenditures were going to be funded with the philosophy of spending the most restricted
first trying to spend what they are receiving in the Cumulative Capital Development Fund so that
it is not unnecessarily without at least a given purpose accumulating a reserve that they were
spending that first. That is why you will see some transitions between account lines and the

12



DRAFT

whole they should be noted within the Schedule A. It is essentially a flip flop in the software
subscriptions and capital.

James Gerald, Director of Information Technology said under the Aspire program, their
initiatives span quality of place, infrastructure, and public safety. They are integrated with just
about every department in the city. In 2024, the help desk tickets increased quickly and they
mitigated international crowd strike outage within 4 hours for emergency services and 8 hours
for the entire city. They have created new data centers and firewall which strengthen our
foundation and cybersecurity and they have completed a unified phone system, phase one and
assisted many departments in expanding their services, including the one Debra Barrett
mentioned. In 2025 our focus is to continue to optimize and expand on the 2024 projects and to
fine tune our cybersecurity through training of user awareness and security awareness. They will
begin phase two of the phone project and expand it city-wide. They will also be renewing some
of the service contracts for software.

Councilman Mishler asked about the public Wi-Fi project, audio visual, and Audio-visual
Technology hereafter, AV equipment. James Gerald said with the ever expanding events at the
park they are expanding the coverage for everyone attending and also the vendors and it will
encompass the whole area. They do a lot of events throughout the city and they are not always in
a facility like the Lerner and with the AV equipment they have been able to do the events better
like the Elkhart Grand Prix. They are asking for better speakers and better microphones and a
travel kit that’s purpose is for it to go to all the difference places there are events, for example,
Let’s Talk Tuesday and ribbon cuttings so that things are done in a more professional manner.
Councilman Mishler asked what happens to old personal computers, hereafter PC, once they
are replaced. James Gerald replied old equipment goes on the asset disposal list and we get
approval to destroy it. The hard drives contain sensitive material so those are shredded and they
recycle the PC’s.

Councilman Fish said since he has been on the council having a Wi-Fi on all up and down Main
Street, what is the status of that. James Gerald said currently Surf Internet has the wireless
downtown and they are looking at ways to enhance that. It is very difficult with the lack of
infrastructure regarding fiber down the street so they have to implement point to point and each
time you go out a hop you lose half of the bandwidth. They are trying to supplement that by
putting more fiber into different places. Councilman Fish asked do you have enough money to
satisfy the need to the Main Street Wi-Fi. James Gerald replied they have enough money to do
the targeted area but they would require additional funding to do it all and that does not include
any equipment for security cameras at the Railroad Museum right now. Councilman Fish asked
as a board member of the Friends of the Railroad Museum he is asking about the possibility of
the board to raise funds for the project. James Gerald said they have a quote for the Railroad
Museum but he is not sure if the budgeting is correct on that. Councilman Fish said he would
like to get eyes on that as that is the Friends of the Museum’s defined goal.

13



DRAFT

Councilwoman Hines asked if there is a way to partner with the schools to collaboration on
funding for the Wi-Fi in the parks that are located around schools. James Gerald said yes that
could be a possibility and he has had conversations with the Parks Department to look at those
opportunities. In some cases they have been able to do that through hybrid Comcast fiber, but it
is not as robust.

Councilman Henke asked about an unbudgeted amount and asked what it was for. Jamie Arce
replied it was a transfer of funds for and already existing project. Councilman Henke asked
about membership dues and if it was a new membership for software purposes. Jamie Arce
replied he can supply specifics and it may have been an expenditure that had been out of a
different account line. He said as they go forward they will get better at getting line expenditures
with the right amount. Councilman Henke is concerned about the under-funding of this account
and asked how many breaches have you had in the last 12 months. James Gerald responded
there are hundreds of attacks on a daily basis. With the initiatives that were put in they are able to
prevent that. They are always evaluating new solutions.

Councilman Mishler asked about adding security cameras in places like the River Walk and is
that something that can happen with the current Wi-Fi and how costly that would be. James
Gerald replied that would be costly and with the current infrastructure they do not currently
have a way to accomplish that. They could get some cameras in those areas but they could not
get complete coverage due to the restriction in band width under Comcast.

Councilman Fish in the past we have had a presentation about fiber are you saying the network
fiber is far from being complete. James Gerald said yes they are having internal conversations
about how to expand that and they are working with the Elkhart County Highway Division to
find fiscally responsible ways to get it to the most important sites in the city. Councilman Fish
asked who is making it the priority. James Gerald replied it is a dual purpose they are going to
put it where they need it for county purposes and if it happens to fall in line with some things
they are doing and it happens to go down a street they are not interested in then they ask us for
funding to do that. Councilman Fish asked do they have to have a separate conversation and a
separate budget for a relationship with Surf Internet. James Gerald said they are open to any
conversation but it is a leadership question and there has been no conversation or negotiation.

Councilman Mishler asked if there has been any cooperation with the state or federal
government regarding the bandwidth equity access and deployment program, the beat program.
James Gerald replied not currently that has been brought to his attention. He would be willing
to investigate.

Jamie Arce as a follow up to Councilman Henke’s question regarding the subscriptions, it is a
different account line into a new account line.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Crabtree, second by Councilwoman King.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Information Technology General Fund was
tentatively approved.

Discussion on the Information Technology General Fund budget ends at 2 hours, 26 minutes and
10 seconds of the audio recording.
14



DRAFT

Information Technology Cumulative Capital Development (Page 122 of the Budget Book):

Discussion on the Information Technology Cumulative Capital Development budget begins at 2
hours, 26 minutes and 37 seconds of the audio recording.

Jamie Arce said this represents a large amount of transfers for Cumulative Capital, hereafter,
(CUMUCAP) development that had previously been in the general fund and that are now being
paid out of the cumulative capital development fund. The anticipation would be that similar to
the Records Perpetuation Fund this would continue to keep this pace so they have a better
trending and more easily identified year to year transactions to be able to review.

Councilman Henke asked about the maintenance contract that does not appear on Schedule A.
Jamie Arce said that may be part of the software subscriptions that is transitioning to the new
budget line. Councilman Henke asked about the departments charging out its services. Does
this department charge out its time? Jamie Arce said at this time we do not have any department
doing a direct charge back to any other department.

Councilman Fish asked is the IT department managing all of the software licenses for all
departments. James Gerald said yes IT is managing most of those subscriptions. Councilman
Fish is there a plateau? James Gerald said he does believe it will taper off but it will never go
down. He tries to negotiate and bundle software where he can and ask for discounts.

Motion for tentative approval made by Councilman Mishler, second by Councilwoman Hines.

By a unanimous voice vote, the 2025 budget for Information Technology Cumulative
Capital Developm